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BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members of
360 ONE INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
(formerly known as IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED)

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirteenth Annual Report of 360 ONE
INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED (“Company” and formerly known as
[IFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED) together with the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The highlights of the financial results for the year ended March 31, 2024 as compared to
previous financial year, are as under:

(X In MN)
Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Gross Total Income RX37/749 . X161.60

Less: Expenditure X 195.04 X 140.99
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation X 182.45 R20.61

Less: Taxation — Current 4639 %5.01

- Deferred % (0.42) % 0.05

- Mat Credit Gains - ' -

- Short or Excess Provision of Income Tax G -

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax X136.48 X 15.55

* Figure are as per Indian AS
2. REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS AND MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Our company provides advisory services to families to address their succession needs in
respect of their Indian assets. In the ever-changing regulatory social, economic and geo
political environment, as a well-established and reputed brand in the Estate Planning Advisory
and Trusteeship space we have been helping clients and their upcoming future generations
benefit by ensuring continuity, prudence, and professionalism in the management of their
asset holdings.

We have been assisting families in planning succession of their different asset classes viz.
business holding, financial assets, immovable assets, jewelry, art and artefacts. The primary
goal of estate planning is to ensure that the estate of the wealth earner/owner is seamlessly
passed on to the beneficiaries in the most efficient manner while continuing to be utilized for
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the benefit of the family. We have also been actively engaging with the clients for Trust
Administration Services offering to them a very efficacious solution to their Trusteeship and
Trust maintenance needs where they can retain the primary control within the family while
still ensuring professionally managed operations of the Trust.

Trust vehicles were in the past being used purely as testamentary vehicles for holding and
deferred or conditional distribution of the estate of a testator. With the passage of time
numerous utility aspects of Trusts have emerged. Today, Trust-based vehicles are being used
for broad spectrum of client requirements ranging from holding of assets for ensuring
seamless benefits to family members, consolidation of family business holding or specific
benefit driven trust structures to cater to needs of minors and ageing HNIs who need to
provide for their own care as well in case of their incapacitation. Private trust structures have
evolved as effective vehicles for holding investing assets, housing interest of family in business
entities securing the interests of the beneficiaries by providing asset protection and ensuring
distribution of income and assets as per the desires of the wealth owner.

We have been part of this transformation advising our clients with innovative, tailor-made
solutions basis their objectives. We have also been actively involved in guiding on a very
selective basis in the drafting of family constitution for some key families helping them to
decide on approach and also with procuring necessary expert advisory from specialized firms
on regulatory and taxation matter so as to ensure a one-stop and wholesome solution for
their family situation.

3. FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE BUSINESS

Due to the dynamic nature of global environment, we have seen increased enquires from
families on the need and importance of estate planning.

Today, we are exclusive advisors to over more than 850 families, trustees to 414 trusts and
Assets under Trusteeship (Portfolio Assets) of over INR 10,211 crores as on 31st March 2024,
and continue to strongly hold our position as one of the largest Trusteeship services provider
in India in the Family Private Trust space. We have our offices in 3 locations across India viz
Mumbai, NCR Region and Bengaluru.

Itis heartening to note that we have been able to be a Trusted Advisor to families across more
than 15 states.

While we continue to provide our clients with tailor-made, innovative solutions and expand
our footprint, we are also committed to build a technological platform to support certain
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aspects of our business. Our goal is to have a fully-supported and robust technological
platform for the entire business over the next couple of years.

4. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant
circumstances had decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for the
year under review.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2024, the Authorised Share capital of the Company was %35,25,00,000
divided into 3,52,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each and the total of issued,
subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company stood at %35,22,50,000/- divided into
3,52,25,000 Equity Shares of face value of £10/- each.

The Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares, Bonus Shares, Shares with Differential
voting rights, Equity Shares on Rights basis and Preferential basis/Private placement basis
during the year under review.

6. NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any debt securities.
7. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATES:

The Company does not have any subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates.

8. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Board of Directors of your Company has decided not to transfer any amount to the
reserves for the year under review.

9. DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted/renewed any deposit within
the meaning of Section 73 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with applicable rules
thereto.
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10. ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 and Section 134 of the Act, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the draft Annual Return of the Company as
on March 31, 2024, is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.iiflwealth.com/IATSL-Disclosure-Documents.

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
a) Directors:

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company represents an optimal mix of expertise,
knowledge and experience. The Board at its meeting held on April 11, 2023, approved the
appointment of Mr. Rohit Wadhwa as an Additional (Executive, Professional) Director
designated as Whole-time Director on the Board of the Company with effect from April 11,
2023, Further, the members of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on
May 31, 2023, approved the appointment of Mr. Rohit Wadhwa as Whole-time Director of
the Company for a period of Three (3) years. Further, Mr. G.S. Vinothharish resigned as a
Whole-Time Director of the Company with effect from April 12, 2023. The Board places on
record its appreciation for the invaluable association and services to the Company provided
by Mr. G.S. Vinothharish during his tenure as Whole-Time Director of the Company.

Accordingly, the composition of Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2024 is
as follows:

1. Mr. Girish Venkataraman, Whole-Time Director
2. Mr. Niraj Murarka, Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Rohit Wadhwa, Whole-Time Director

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being
appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164 of the Act.

b) Directors retiring by rotation:

In terms of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of applicable provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Girish Venkataraman (DIN: 06981605), retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The necessary resolution for his re-appointment and his brief profile is included in the notice
convening the AGM.
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c) Meetings of the Board of Directors:

During the year under review, 7 (Seven) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company
were held on following dates: 1) April 11, 2023; 2) May 03, 2023; 3) July 19, 2023; 4)
November 01, 2023; 5) January 08, 2024; 6) January 17, 2024 and 7) February 09, 2024.

The gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days as mentioned
under Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) Committees of the Board:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has
duly constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. Mr. Girish Venkataraman,
Mr. Niraj Murarka and Mr. Rohit Wadhwa are members of CSR Committee.

The CSR Committee has approved and adopted CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company was not liable to spend any amount on CSR during the FY 2023-24 and hence
Annual Report on CSR activities of the Company is not required to annexed.

e) Annual Evaluation of the Board:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act; the Board took note of the annual performance
evaluation results for the Board as a whole, its Committees and all the Directors of the
Company, based on the following criteria:

For Board as a whole:

The criteria for evaluation of the Board, inter alia, included competency of the Board to conduct
the Company’s affairs, composition and diversity, constructiveness of the Meetings of the
Board, cohesiveness of the Board to function as a team, managing current and potential
strategic issues, risk management and corporate culture and values.

For Committee of the Board:

The criteria for evaluation of the Committee of the Board, inter alia, included composition and
effectiveness of the Committees, frequency and regularity of the Meetings of the Committee,
duration of the Meetings and effective recommendation to the Board.
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The Board carried out the evaluation of its performance and discussed the suggestions received
from the Directors as a part of board evaluation process for the year under the review. The
suitable feedback was conveyed to the Directors and the management, for necessary action. It
also noted the development in the areas of focus identified in the previous year’s evaluation.

f) Key Managerial Personnel:

During the year under review, there were following changes in the Key Managerial Personnel
(“KMP”) of the Company.

Ms. Lalitha Subhashini B, Chief Financial Officer resigned wef February 09, 2024 and Mr.
Himanshu K Jain was appointed as Chief Financial Officer wef February 10, 2024.

As on March 31, 2024 and as on the date of this report, following officials were the KMPs,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act:

1. Mr. Girish Venkataraman, Whole-time Director & Chief Executive Officer;
2. Mr. Himanshu K Jain, Chief Financial Officer and
3. Ms. Nikita Shah, Company Secretary

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

There was NIL spending on CSR in the current year as the Company was not liable to spend
any amount on CSR for the financial year 2023-24.

Hence, the provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility were not applicable to the
Company during the year under review.

12. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The disclosures pertaining to the remuneration and other details as required under Section
197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, will be made available if a written request is received from
Members. Further, if the request is received prior to the date of Annual General Meeting the
details will be made available within 3 days and if the request if received post the date of Annual
General Meeting then such particulars will be made available within 7 days.
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13. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION/PURCHASE SCHEME:

The Company does not have an employee stock option/stock purchase scheme. However,
eligible employees of the Company are granted options of 360 ONE WAM LIMITED (formerly
known as IIFL Wealth Management Limited), holding Company.

14. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND INTERNAL ADEQUACY:

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks
to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuous basis.

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements
and operations and the same are operating effectively. The Statutory Auditors verified the
systems and processes and confirmed that the Internal Financial Controls system over
financial reporting are adequate and such controls are operating effectively. These controls
are tested periodically to ensure they operate effectively and are revised, wherever needed.

15. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY:

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals against the Company which would impact the going concern
status and the Company’s future operations.

16. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

Atthe Annual General Meeting held on September 08, 2020 M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 117366W/W100018), were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company and shall continue to hold office for the Second Term of
five years till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the
year 2025,

17. AUDITORS’ REPORT:

The reports of the statutory auditors on financial statements of the Company form part of
the Annual Report.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers by the statutory
auditors, in their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
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The notes to the Financial Statements referred in the auditor’s reports are self-explanatory
and therefore do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Act.

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported any incident of fraud
committed in the Company by its officers or employees to the Audit Committee under Section
143(12) of the Act.

18, SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report were not applicable to the
Company during the year under review.

19. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has not made any loans, given guarantees or provided security during the year
under review. The details of investments made are provided in Note No. 6 of the financial
statements of the Company.

20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All contracts or arrangement or transactions as referred Section 188 of the Act, that were
entered into by the Company with the related parties during the year under review, were in
ordinary course of the business of the Company and the same were on arm’s length basis.
Also, during the year under review, there were no material contracts or arrangement or
transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties. Accordingly, the
disclosure as required under Section 134 of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the
Company for financial year 2023-24 and hence does not form part of this Report.

The transactions with related parties are disclosed by way of Note No. 29 to the notes to
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

21. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information on energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is appended below:
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a. Conservation of energy:

The Company is engaged in providing financial services and as such its operations do not
account for substantial energy consumption. However, the Company takes all possible
measures to conserve energy and reduce its carbon footprint. Several environment friendly
measures adopted by the Company include:

» Using technology such as radiant cooling, adopting VRV (Variable Refrigerant Volume) in
new projects,

» Installation of capacitors to save power,

= Installation of Thin Film Transistor (TFT) monitors that saves power,

+ Replacing CFLs with LED lights,

« Automatic power shutdown of idle monitors,

» Restricted access to printers at central hub besides removal of older printers,

« Minimizing air-conditioning usage,

= Procuring 100% green energy at our Mumbai Head- office,

+ Shutting off all the lights and air-conditioners when not in use, and

» Education and awareness programs for employees.

The management frequently puts circulars on corporate intranet and digital boards in common
areas for the employees, educating them on ways and means to conserve electricity and other
natural resources and encourages adherence of the same. For further details, please refer to
the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report which forms part of the Annual Report.

b. Technology absorption and innovation:

The management understands the key role that technology plays in enabling the business and
in driving growth. It operates and lays utmost emphasis on deploying scalable platforms and
products to ensure a great and sustained customer and employee experience and to facilitate
a digital platform that enables the launch of new services at speed and scale. The management
keeps itself abreast of technological advancements in the industry and ensures continued and

sustained efforts towards adoption of technology of the same to meet the business needs and
objectives.

With a goal towards data democratization, rapid response to regulatory shifts, API first and
service oriented architecture, the management has invested considerable resources in
deploying the latest technologies. We have implemented master data management including
one of the most complex securities reference data hubs, data lake, data warehouse and data
governance. We have transformed onboarding and front office sales and service and are in the
process of migrating legacy monolithic applications to micro services and AP! first capabilities.
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With a cloud first, API first and data first philosophy, we are moving towards a highly scalable,
highly flexible, high performance business. The Company has also made significant strides in
providing rapid and scalable ramp-up and ramp-down of capacity by adopting cloud
technologies.

The management is aware of increasing threats in the information security domain and has
taken several steps to ensure that the Company is safeguarded against cyber security attacks,
data leakage and security breaches. It has ensured that the Company is at all times compliant
with both regulatory and technological controls. Organization has adopted a multi-layered
security approach by implementing security controls for addressing people, process and
technology risks.

c. Foreign Exchange Earning: % 24 Mn.
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Nil

d. Research and development (R&D):

The Company is mainly engaged in advisory business and trusteeship services, which entails
internal research of investment products, sectors and markets.

22. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT 2013:

The Company is committed to provide a work environment that ensures every woman
employee is treated with dignity and respect and afforded equitable treatment. The Company
is also committed to promote a work environment that is conducive to the professional
growth of its women employees and encourages equality of opportunity. The Company will
not tolerate any form of sexual harassment and is committed to take all necessary steps to
ensure that its women employees are not subjected to any form of harassment.

Your Directors further state that the Company has complied with the provisions relating to
the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee as per the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and has put in place
a ‘Prevention of Sexual Harassment and Complaint Procedure Policy’ and that during the year
under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The said policy of the Company
inter alia specifies details on the reporting, redressal and enquiry process.

During the year, one (1) complaint was received by the Company, which was investigated and
resolved as per the provisions of the POSH Act.
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23. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby
confirmed that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

24. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Company has put in place adequate policies and procedures to ensure that the system of
internal financial controls is commensurate with the size and nature of the Company’ s
business. This system of internal financial controls provides a reasonable assurance in respect
of providing financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes,
safeguarding of assets of the Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and
completeness of accounting records and ensuring compliance with corporate policies.

25. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.

26. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM:

Considering the nature and size of the operations of the Company during the financial year
2023-24; the provisions of the Act regarding formal process of Vigil Mechanism are not
applicable to the Company. However, going by its philosophy of providing fair and tra nsparent
working environment for all its employees, the Company has adopted a Policy on Vigil and
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Whistle Blower Mechanism and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for employees,
directors, suppliers, service providers and contractual staff to raise genuine concerns about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the policies.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Mechanism provides for nature of issues
covered, available reporting channels to report an incident, steps along with expected
timelines for resolving concerns reported and measures available to safeguard against
victimization of the whistle blower who avails of such mechanism. The whistle blower is
provided access to any two Directors of the Company. No whistle blower complaint was
received by the Company during the period under review.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Mechanism is available on the website of
the Company at https://archive.iiflwealth.com/sites/default/files/inline-files/Policy-on-Vigil-
Mechanism-and-Whistle-Blower-Mechanism.pdf.

27. DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT:

The Company has not made any downstream investments in terms Foreign Direct Investment
Policy during the financial year 2023-24.

28. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 AND DATE OF THIS REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year under review and the date of this Report.

29. OTHER DISCLOSURES:
During the year under review:

e There was no change in the nature of business during the financial year under review.

e There was no revision in the Financial Statements of the Company;

e Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the
provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act were not applicable for the business activities
carried out by the Company;

e There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016;

e There was no one-time settlement entered into with any Bank or financial institutions in
respect of any loan taken by the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of 360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly
known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 360 ONE Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Lirmited (Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services
Limited) ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flow, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{"SAs”) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

+ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's report but does net include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

= Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

= In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
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with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e When we read the Director’s report, if we conciude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as
required under SA 720 'The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal financial controis relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
reiated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s repart to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative matertality and qualitative
factors (i) in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and
{ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f)

g)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinien on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controis with
reference to financial statements

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.  The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer Note 28 to the financial statements;
ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iit.  There were no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company
iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"}, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of
Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software(s). Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with,
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 {g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Anjum'A. Qazi
(Partner)
(Membership No. 104968)

(UDIN 24104968BKCMDH1028)
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 20, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAIL. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note") issued by the ICAL and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internat financial controls with reference
to financial statements, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonabile assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detait, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
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(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonahle
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautharised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controis with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
staternents, including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the expianations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control
with reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internat Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

-

Anjum A. Qazi

(Partner)

(Membership No. 104968)
(UDIN 24104968BKCMDH1028)

Place; Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024
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ANNEXURE “"B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(B

(i)

in respect to the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibie Assets:

{a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{B) As, the Company does not hold any intangible assets, reporting under clause
3(i}(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, were physically verified during the year by the
Management which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at reasonable
intervals,

(c)  The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting under
of Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during the
year. The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii){a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the
year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or
firancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, and hence reporting
under clause (ii){b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii} The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security to and granted

loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. With respect to such
investments, guaraniees or security and loans or advances:

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee, or provided security during the year and details of which are given
below:

Loans (Including Interest)
(Rs. in million)

A) Aggregate Amount Granted/provided during the year

Subsidiaries Nil
Joint Ventures Nil
Associates Nil

Others 80.70
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

Loans (Including Interest)
(Rs. in _million)

B) Balance Qutstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases:

Subsidiaries Nil
Joint Ventures Nil
Assaciates Nil
Others 0.49
(b} The investments made, guarantees provided and securities given during the year
are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest,
() in respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal

and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal
amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation.

(d) Accerding to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(&) No loan granted by the Company which has failen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

() According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year, Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees, and securities provided, as
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the QOrder is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Income-

tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally
been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of the Employee
State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax are not
applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March
31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

Name Nature of Forum Period Amount | Amount
of the | the where to (Rs. In | unpaid
Statute | Dues Dispute is which million) | (Rs. In
Pending the million)
Amount
Relates
Income Disallowance | Commissioner | AY 2017-| 15.23 12.10
Tax under 14A | of Income Tax | 18
Act, 1961 | and (Appeal)
Disallowance
of expense

(viii} There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) during the year.

(ix}
(a) The Company has not taken any loans or cther borrowings from any banks, Financial
Institutions, government agencies. Hence reporting under clause (ix)}(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix){c¢) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long term
purposes by the Campany.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year
and hence, reporting under clause (ix}(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised any lpans during the year and hence reporting on clause
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable,

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x}(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotrnent or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionaliy} and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi}

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
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{b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of this report,

{(c} As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year (and upto the date of this report)

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xiii} In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)

(a) In our opinion the Company is not required to have an internal audit system under section
138 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(b} There are no internal auditors and hence, reporting under clause (xiv)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xv) To the best of our knowtedge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause {(xvi) {a), {(b) and {c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d} The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group and
accordingly reporting under clause (xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Cempany has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xvili} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year.

{xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report, that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pericd of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
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the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx} The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover
of rupees one thousand crore or maore or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during
the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selils LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Anjum A. Qazi

{Partner)

{Membership No. 104968)
{UDIN 24104968BKCMDH1028)

Place; Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024



360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trastee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PI.C211339
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{% tMin}
5r No, Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2024 As 8t March 31, 2623
ASSETS
1 Financiak Assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 20.35 3297
(b) Receivabtes 4
{1} Trade receivables 202.94 63.49
{11} Other receivables 0.32 ¢33
le) Loans 5 0.49 -
{d} investments [} 164.77 303.59
(e) Other financial assets 7 23.48 21.89
2 Non-Financial Assets
{a) Current tax assets {net) 19.54 25.32
{b} Deferred tax assets {net) 8 2.64 1.96
(c) Property, plant and eguipment g 1.64 0.13
(d) Intangible assets under development 10 2.17 C.56
{e} Right of use assets 11 1.07 2.25
(f) Other non-f.nancial assets 12 0.79 1.32
Tatal Assets £40.20 443.81
LIABHLITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
{a) Payables
{NFrade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 13
than micro enterprises and smal enterprises 19.04 19.83
(b} Lease Liabilities 1% 111 2.28
(c} Other financial liabilities 14 0.48 1.18
2 INon-Financial Liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities {net) 35.98 0.57
{h) Provisions 15 4,06 2,11
{c} Cther non-financial tiabilities 16 13.92 7.93
3 lEQUiITY
{a} Equity share capitat 17 352.25 352.25
(b) Other eguity 18 193.36 57.65
Total Liabilities and Equity 644120 443,81

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
As per gur report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registr:::’w

AnJum A. Qazi
Partner
{Membership No. 104968)

?VH\

r. 117366 W/W-100018

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars

02 g

Girish Venkataraman

Whole Time Director and CEQ

IN: 06981%

anshu K.Yain
Chief Finanetal Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024

Niraj Kumar Murarka
Director
[DIN: G2312454)

W
Nikitz Sha
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360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited}
CIN: U74930MH2010P1C211334
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{% Mn)
SrNo. Particulars Note No. 2023 - 2024 2422 -2023
1 Revenue from operations
{a} Fees and commission income 19 345.90 130.60
Total revenue from operatiens 345.90 130.60
2 Other income 20 31.59 31.00
3 Total income [1+2) 377.49 161.60
Expenses
{a) Finance costs 21 0.17 1.3
{b} Fees and commission expenses 0.00# Q.00#
{c} impairment on financial instruments 22 2.06 2.02
{d) Employee benefit expenses 23 167.59 100.95
{e) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 11 0.70 0.33
4] Other expenses ) 24 24.52 36.38
4 Total expenses 195.04 140.99
S Profit before tax {3-4) 182.45 20,61
6 Tax expense:
{a) Current tax 25 46.39 5.01
{b} Deferred tax 25 {0.42} 0.05
7 Prafit for the year {5-6} 136.48 15,55
8 Other comprehensive income/{loss)
{a} (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of Employee Benefits 231 (1.03) {0.92)
{ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reciassified to
profit or loss 25 0.26 0.23
Subtatat (a) 10.77) (0.6}
{b) (i} Items that wilt be reclassified to profit or loss
{3} Income tax relating to iterms that will be reclassified to profit
or loss - .
Subtotal (b} - -
Other comprehensive income (a+b} {0.77) (0.6%}
Total camprehensive income/{loss} for the year (7+8)
El {Comprising profit and other comprehensive income for the
vear] 135.71 14.86
10 Earnings per equity share
Basic X 26 387 0.44
Diluted ¥ 26 3.87 0.44

Note:- 0.00# indicates less than (%10,000/-)

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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For Delaitte Hasking & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
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360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as HFL Investment Adviser and Trustea Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Statement Of Cashflows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(X Mn)

Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 182.45 20.61
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 0.70 .33

Provisions for Employee benefits 1.13 {1.23}

Net changes in Fair value through Profit and loss of Investments (2.28} {1.36)

Impairment on Financial Instrument 2.06 2.02

Interest Income {29.28) (29.64)

inferest expenses €.09 1.24

interest on iease liabilities 0.08 0.07
Operating profit before working capital changes 154.95 {7.96}
Changes in working Capital :

{Increase}/Decrease in Financial/Non-financial Assets (151.67} 11.57

Increase/{Decrease) in Financial/Non-financial Liahilities 23.04 {1.87)
Cash generated from oparations 26.32 1.74

{Increase)/Decrease in Loans (net dishursed) (0.49) -
Cash generated from operating activities 25.83 1.74

Net income tax {paid) (5.20) {0.59)
Net cash generated from operating activities {A} 20.63 1.15
B. Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of investments (58.90) (8.76}

Interest income received 29.28 29.64

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (includes intangible assets) (3.54) (0,70}
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities (B} (33.16) 20.18
C. Cash flows from financing activities

Interest Paid (0.0%) {1.24)
Net cash used in financing activities {C}) {0.09) {1.24)
(Decrease)/Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {12.62) 20.09
Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 32.97 12.88
Closing Cash & cash equivalents 20.35 32.97

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Information

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number. 117366W/W-100018

Anjum A.
Partaer
(Membership No.104968)

e

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

CZNSL

Girish Venkataraman Niraj Kumar Murarka
Whole Time Director and CEQ Director
{DIN: 06981{?3.}/\ (DIN: 02312454)
- w
Himanshu X Jain Nrk as ah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(ACS: 26447)

Place : Mumbat
Date: April 20, 2024




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as {IFL investrnent Adviser and Trustee Services Limited}

CIN: UTA%30MH2010P10211334

Statermnent of Changes in Equity foar the year ended March 31, 2024

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2024

{X Mn)

Balance as at April 01, 2023

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errars

Restated balance as at April

01, 2023

Changes in equity share
capital during the current
year

Balance as at March
31, 2024

352.25

35225

352.25

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQLNTY SHARE CAPITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2023

Balance as at April 01, 2022

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errors

Restated balance as at April

01,2022

Changes in equity share
capital during the current
year

Balance as at March
31, 2023

352.25

35225

352.25

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

{X Mn)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

CQther Equity
Particulars . .
Securities Premium Retained Earnings Total Other Equity
Account
Balance at the beginning of the year April 01, 2023 1.40 56.25 57.65%
Profit for the year - 136.48 136.48
Other comprehensive income - 10.77) {0.77}
Balance at the end of the year March 31, 2024 1,40 191.96 193.36
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS ON MARCH 31, 2023
(X Mn}
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Other Equity
Particulars o 3
Se:uru:::uz;imlum Retained Earnings Total Other Equity
Balance at the beginning of the year April 01, 2022 1.40 41.39 42.79
Profit for the year - 15.55 15.55
Other comprehensive income - {0.69} {0.65)
Balance at the end of the year March 31, 2023 1.40 56.2% 57.65

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firny's registra:i::yber

Anjuin A, Qazi

17366W/W-100018

Partner
{Membership No,104968)

g

Place : Mumbai
Date; Aprii 20, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Girish Venkataraman
Whaole Time Director and
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{DIN: 059{1}59&
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anshh
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Jain

Chief Financiat Officer
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Niraj Kumar Murarka
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Company Secretary
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360 ONE investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IEL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Note 1. Corporate Information;

360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL. Investment Adviser and Trustee
Services Limited) {the "Company"} is a wholly owned subsidiary of 360 ONE WAM Limited {Farmerly known as HFL
Wealth Management Limited). In the current year name of the Company has changed to 360 ONE Investment Adviser
and Trustee Services Limited vide ROC Certificate of incorporation dated January 5, 2023. The Company is mainly
engaged into undertaking and carrying on the office or offices and duties of Trustee, custodian trustee, executor,
administrator, liquidator, receiver, attorney or nominee of, or for funds and assets of all holders including corporate
bodies, high net worth individuals (HN!I's), Hindu Undivided Family (HUFs}, Private or Public Trusts, Mutual Funds,
offshore funds, pension funds, superannuation funds, provident funds, venture capital funds, private equity funds
and to hold the property in trust for the benefit of the beneficiaries of the Trust. The Company is registered with
SEBI as an Investment Advisor.

Note 2 - Material Accounting Policies
a} Statement of Compliance:

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS} notified under the Companies {Iindian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and amendments thereof issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgations
require a different treatment.

These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting
held on April 20,2024,

b} Basis of Preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI} instruments, derivative
financial instruments, fair value through Profit or Loss and other financial assets held for trading. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when
otherwise indicated.

¢} Presentation of Financial Statement:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division Hl of the Schedule 11 ta
the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date
(current} and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non-current) is presented in Note 30.1.

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the promised goods and services are transferred to the customer i.e. when performance
obligations are satisfied. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company appfies the five-step approach for the recognition of revenue:

i. Hentification of contracts with the customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must
be met.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIEL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74590MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

ii. identification of the separate performance obligation in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise
in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the custamer.

iii. Determination of transaction price; The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

iv. Allocation of transaction price to separate performance obligation: For 2 contract that has more than one
performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an
amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for satisfying each performance obligation.

v. Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied

The following is a description of principal activities from which the Company generates its revenue.

Trusteeship fees: Fees on trusteeship services are recognised at a point in time when the service obligations are
completed and when the terms of contracts are fulfilled.

Advisory Fees: Revenug is recognised over time or when the outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably
by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction in accordance with the underlying arrangement.

e) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognises a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are
measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement;

For subseguent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the Company's
business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {EVTOCH
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost ¥ both the following conditions are met:

- The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, and




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CiN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOC:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC if both of the following conditions are met:
- The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the above category, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss and changes in fair value {other than on account of above income or expense) are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in ather equity. On disposal of such debt
instruments at FVTOCI financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

ifi. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as mentioned above.
This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in associate
Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following oceurs:

- The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

- The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially
transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

- The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby
substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

- The Company neither transfers nor retains, substantially all risk and rewards of ownership, and does not
retain control over the financial asset.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, {except as mentioned in i above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI),
the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

+ Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:
The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Having regards to the terms and structure of issuance, Financial Liabilities are

categorized as follows:
{i} recognised at amortised costs




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIEL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

{ii} recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) including the embedded derivative component if any,
which is not separated.

{iii) where there is an embedded derivative as part of the financial liability, such embedded derivative is
separated and recorded at fair value and the remaining component is categorized as on amortised costs.

Subsequent measurement:
(i} All financial liabilities of the Company are categorised as subsequently measured at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest method.

(i} All financial liabilities of the Company are categorised at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit and loss statement.

(iii) For derivatives embedded in the fiability, the embedded derivative is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit and Joss and the fiability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

f) Fair value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned
above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels, described as follows. The fair value hierarchy gives
the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 inputs) and the lowest
priority to unohservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

level 1 — quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and habilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.

g) Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items
that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Nonmonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as HEL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited}

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

h} Income Taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of
current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs
from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income ar expense that
are taxzble or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable
tax laws. Current tax is measured using tax ratas that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under Income Tax
Act, 1961,

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of temporary
differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction {other than business combination)
that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised. Also, for
temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised. It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible
temporary difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable
temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of deductible temporary difference or
in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is
recognised to the extent it is probable that:

{i} the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible temporary difference or
periods in which a tax loss ¢an be carried forward or back; or
(i) tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate periods

[n case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction {other than
business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not
recognised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such
deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted ar substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74930MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

The deferred tax assets (net) and deferred tax Eabilities {net) are determined separately for the Company, as per
their applicable laws and then aggregated.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and L.oss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred
tax income/expense are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
fliability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company
has a tegally enforceabie right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
Company.

i) Provisions and Contingencies

The Company recognises provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation
cannot be measured refiably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which
likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and chegques in hand, bank
bakances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less,

k} Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits and they are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service, The
Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave
entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the Statement of Profit
and Loss and corresponding liability on such non- vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an
independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as 1IFL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Post-Empioyment Benefits:

{l) Defined contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into state managed retirement benefit schemes and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions, if any, if the state managed funds do not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years, The
Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the financial year to which they relate. The Company operates defined contribution plans pertaining to
Employee State Insurance Scheme and Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for all applicable
employees and the Company also operates Defined Contribution Plans pertaining to Provident Fund
Scheme.

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans:

The Company recognises contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees render services to the Company during the reporting
period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees before the reporting date exceeds
the contributions already paid, the deficit payable is recognised as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received befare the reporting date, the excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

t. Defined benefit plans:

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan, for employees. The Company makes annual
contributions to funds administered by trustees and managed by a financial institution, tewards meeting
the Gratuity obligations.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognised in the
Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value
of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset {negative defined benefit obligations resulting from
this caleulation) is recognised representing the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Al expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost if any and net interest on the defined benefit
liability (asset) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets {excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset), are recognised in Other Comprehensive income. Such
remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subseguent periods.

1) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) of the Holding Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the aperating segments of the Company.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as lIfL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLL211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

m} Share-based Compensation
The Company recognises compensation expense relating to share-based payments in the net profit using fair
value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is charged to
income on a straight line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award.

n} Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year atiributable to equity
sharehalders {after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are
deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning
of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for
the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value {i.e. average market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

2.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumption

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the key accounting judgments that the management has used:

i. Property, Plant and Equipment
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The lives are based on historical experience with
similar assets and are based on changes in technical or commercial obsolescence.

ii. Defined Benefit Obligation
The costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions sefected by the management. These assumptions include salary
escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and maortality rates.

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabiities within the next financial year, are described below:

i. Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in

T RUMDE A -
P}
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#~




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair vafues.

it. Expected Credit Loss
The provision for expected credit loss involves estimating the probability of default and loss given default based
on the past experience and other factors.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as tFL Investment Adviser and Yrustee Services Limited)
CEN: U74990MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 3%, 2024

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents {X Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand (0.0C4 0.03
Balance with banks

- Current Accounts 20.35 32.84
Cash and Cash equivalents 20.35 32.97
Note: 0,00# indicates less than {210,000/-)




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as BFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CEN: U74990MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 4. Receivables {X Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
{i} Yrade receivables

Receivables considered good - Secured - -

Receivables considered good - Unsecured 202.94 53.49

Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired 8.04 5.98
Total {i)- Gross 210.98 59.47
Less: Impairment loss aliowance (8.04) (5.98)
Total (i}- Net 202.84 53.49
{ii) Other receivables

Receivables considered good - Unsecured 032 0.33
Total {ii)- Gross 0.32 0.33
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total {it}- Net 0.32 0.33
Total {i+ii) 203.26 53,82

a} No trade receivables are due from directors or from other officers of the Campany either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade
or private companies respectively in which any directors is a partner, director or a member as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

b} No trade or other receivables are interest bearing.

€} The Company has adopted simplified approach for impairment allowance. Expected Credit loss (ECL) has been recognised for credit impaired trade
receivables
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360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IFFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited )

CIN: U74990MH2010PEC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 7. Other financial assets

{X Mn}

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Other deposits 0.10 0.03
Advances to group company {Note no.29) 0.16 -
Income accrued and not due 23.22 21.86
Total 23.48 21.89




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

MNote 8. Deferred Taxes

Significart components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

{X Min)
Opening f.zecogn_lsed ) Recogn:s.e.d Closing
in profit or infreclassified
balance balance
loss from OCI
Deferred tax assets:
Impairment of Financial Instruments 1.51 0.51 - 2.02
Retirement benefits for employees 0.49 0.24 0.26 0.99
Impact of Ind AS 116 0.02 {0.01) 0,01
Total deferred tax assets {A) 2.02 0.74 0.26 3.02
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment - 0.01 - .01
Unrealised profit on investments etc, 0.06 0.31 - 0.37
Total deferred tax liabifities (B) 0.06 0.32 - 0.38
Net Deferred tax assets (A - B) 1.96 0.42 0.26 2.64
Significant components of deferred tax assets and fiabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:
{X Mn)
R i mised
Opening R ecogn}sed ' Recog |s.e. Closing
i profit or infreclassified
balance balance
loss from OCI
Deferred tax assets:
Impairment of Financial Instruments 0.9% 0.52 - 1.51
Retirement benefits for employees (0.01} 0.27 0.23 0.49
fmpact of Ind AS 116 c.02 - - 0.0z
Total deferred tax assets (A) 0.98 0.79 0.23 2.02
Deferred tax liahilities
Unrealised profit on investments etc. 0.03 0.03 - 0.06
Total deferred tax liabilities (B} 0.03 0.03 - 0.06
Net Deferred tax liabilities 0.03 0.03 - 0.06
Net Deferred tax assets {A - B) 0.95 0.76 0.23 1.96




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as HFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited}
CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211339
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 9, Property Plant and Equipment X Min}
Particulars Vehicles Computers Total
Gross Block as on April 01, 2023 - 013 0.13
Additions 1.06 (.85 1.92
Deductions/ adjustments during the year - . -
As at March 31, 2024 1.06 0.99 2.05

Accumulated Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2023 - . B

Deductions/Adjustments during the year 0.19 0.22 0.41
Upto March 31, 2024 0.19 0.22 0.41
Net Block as at March 31, 2024 0.87 0.17 1.64
Particulars Vehicles Computers Total
Gross Block as or April 01, 2022 - - -
Additions - 0.13 0.13
Deductions/ adjustments during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2023 - 0.132 0.13

Accumulated Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2022 - - -
Depreciation for the year - R .
Upto March 31, 2023 - - -
MNet Block as at March 31, 2023 - 0.13 0.13




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as HFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services timited]

CIN: U74530MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 10, intangible Assets under development

(% Mn}
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Balance 0.56 -
Intangible Assets under development 0.56
Additions 1.61 -
Deductions/ Adjustments during the year - -
Total 217 0.56
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2024 {% Mn)
Particuiars Intangibles under development far a period of
Total
Less than 1 year i-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 years
Projects in progress 1.61 0.56 - - 217
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2023 -
Particulaes intangibles under development for a period of
Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 years
Projects in progress (.56 - - - 0.56
tntangible under development compietion schedule for the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars To be completed in
M Tatal
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years are than
3 years
Project - TSI Estate Planning Platform 217 - - - 2,17
Intangitle under development completion schedule for the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars To be completad in
Tetal
iess than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than
3 years
Project - TSL £state Planning Platform 0.56 - - - 0.56




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC212334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 11. Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 116 "leases" (% W)
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Vehicles Total
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 2.25 2.25
Additions during the year 0.83 0.81
Depreciation charge for the year {030} {C.30)
Deletions during the year {1.69} {1.69)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.07 1.07
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2623
Particulars Vehicles Tota!
Balance as at 01 Aprif, 2022 .08 .69
Additicns during the year 2.47 2.47
Depreciation charge for the year {C.33} {0.33)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2.25 2.25
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Vehicles Total
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 2.28 2.28
Additions 0.82 0.82
Deletion {1.72) (1.72)
Finance cost accrued during the year 0.08 0.08
Payment of iease liabilities (0.35) (0.35)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.11 1.11
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars Vehicles Total
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 0.16 0.16
Additions 2.47 2.47
Finance cost accrued during the year 0.07 0.07
Payment of lease liabilities {0.37) {0.37}
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2.28 2.28
Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows
Particulars Vehicles Total
Less than one year 0.39 0.39
One to five years 0.88 0.88
More than five years - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 March 2024 1.27 £.27
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 31 March 111 111
2024
Particulars Vehicles Total
Less than one year 0.69 0.69
One to five years 1,94 1.94
Maore than five years - -
Total undiscounted fease liabilities at 21 March 2023 2.63 2.63
Lease liabiiities included in the statement of financial position at 31 March
2023 2.28 2.28
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 0.08 0.07
Expenses relating to short-term leases - 5.13
Depreciation relating to leases 0.30 0.33
Total 0.38 5.53
Amount of Cash Outflows for Lease repayments
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Total cash outflow for leases

0.35




380 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as lIFL investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited}

CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Nates forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 12. Other Non Financiat Assets

{% Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Prepaid expenses c.76 0.90
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for vaiue to be received —
.03 0.42
Unsecured
Total 0.7% 1.32
Note 13, Payables
{XMn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Trade payables -
-[i)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises (Refer note 13.1) ; )
(i) Totat outstlandmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 19.04 10.83
and small enterprises
Total 39.04 19.83

13.1. Disclosure under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The following disclosure is made as per the requirement under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Develepment Act, 2016 {MSMED)} on

the basis of confirmations sought from suppliers on registration with the specified authority under MSMED.

Particulars

2023 - 2024

2022 - 2023

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the year end

(b} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the year
end

{c) Amount of interest paid and payments made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during the year

{d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been pald but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act

(e} Ambunt of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the year end

(f} Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Act

There are no amounts due to the suppliers covered under Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This information
takes into account anly those supptiers who have responded to the enquiries made by the Company for this purpose. Ne interest is payable in

respect of the same.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CHN: U74980MH2010PLC211334

Nates forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

13.2. Trade payables ageing schedule as on March 31,2024 {X Mn)
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2 years [ 2-3 years More than 3 Prov|5|_on and Total
years unbilled
(i} MSME - - - - - -
{ii} Others (.82 - - 38.22 39.04
{iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - others - - - -
Total trade payables as at March 31, 2024 0.82 - - - 38.22 39.04
13.3. Trade payables ageing schedule as an March 31,2023 (X Mn)
OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 mesn-on and fotal
years unbilied
{i} MSME - - - - -
{ii) Others 6.44 - - 13.39 19.83
liil} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - others - - - - - -
Total trade payables as at March 31, 2023 6.44 - - -




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited }

CiN: U74990MH2010PEC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ernded March 31, 2024

Note 14, Other Financial Liabilities

(% Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Payable to group companies {Note No: 29) 0.21 (.86
Others 0.27 0.32
Total 0.48 1.18
Note 15. Provisions:

(X Mn}
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Provision far emplayee benefits
- Gratuity 3.91 2.00
- Compensated absences 0.15 011
Total 4.06 2.11
Note 16. Other Non Financiat Liabilities:

{% Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2029 As at March 31, 2023
Statutory remittances 13.92 7.93
Total 13.92 7.93




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as [iFL. Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74930MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Naote 17, Share Capital;

{3)The authorised, issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital comprises of equity shares having a par value of T 10/- as follows:

{X Mn)

Authorised : As at March 31, 2024 As at March 3%, 2023
35,250,000 Equity sh Pravi 35,250, Eguit

5,250,000 Equity shares [Previous years 50,000 Eguity 352.50 352.50

shares) of T 10/~ sach with voting rights

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up: 35,225,000 Equity shares
{Previous years 35,225,000 Equity shares) of ¥ 10/- each fully 352.25 352.2%
paidup with voting rights

Total 352,25 352.25 -

(b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
No. of shares Amount (% Mn) No. of shares Amount (% Mn)
At the beginning of the year 3,52,25,000 352.25 3,52,25,000 352.25
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,52,25,000 352.25 3,52,25,000 35225

{£} Terms/rights attached to equity shares;

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of T 10/- each. Each hotder of aquity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of Interim dividend,

in the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares wil be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

{d} Details of shares held by Holding Company:

- As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars m
Mo, of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
360 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Wealth
Management Limited) and its nominees 3,52,25,000 100.0% 3,52,25,000 100.0%
{e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:
. As at Mareh 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
No, of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
360 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as 1iFL Wealth
Management Limited} and its nominees 3,52,25,000 100.0% 3,52,25,000 100.0%
{f) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at March 31, 2024
Promoters Name No of shares Sholding % change during the year
360 ONE WAM Uimited [Farmerly known as 1IFi, Wealth
Management Limited) and its nominees 3,52,25,000 i00% 0.0%
As at March 31, 2023
Promoters Name No of shares %holding % change during the year
360 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as UFL Wealth
Management Limited) and its nominees 3,52,25,000 100% 0.0%

(g During the peried of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has not issued any equity shares without payment being received in
cash, bonus shares and has not bought back any equity shares.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as HIFE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74390MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 18, Other Equity:

{X Mn)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Securities premium 1.40 1.40
Retainad earnings 191.96 56.25
Total 193.36 57.65

Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the prafits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to generat reserve, dividends or other

distributions paid to shareholders.




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL investmant Adviser and Trustee Services Limi ted}
CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 19, Fees and Commission Income (X Mn}
Particulars 2023 -2029 2022 - 2023

Advisory Fees* 274.52 74.44
Trustee Fees 71.38 56.16
TOTAL 345.90 130.60

* Above includes income from related parties Note No.29




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74996MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 20. Other Income (X Min)
Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023

Profit on canceliation of lease 0.03 -
Interest Income 29.28 25.64
Change in fair value of investments - realised 1.06 1.23
Change in fair value of investments - unrealised 1.22 0.13
Total 31,59 31.00
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360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as HFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financiat Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 22. Impairment On Financial instruments (X Mn)

2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023

. On financial instruments . "
Particulars On financial instruments

measured at amortised X
t measured at amortised cost
€as

On Trade Receivable 2.0 2.02
Total 2.06 2.02




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerty known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74390MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 23. fmployee Benefit Expenses

(X Mn)

Particulars 20232024 2022 - 2023

Salaries and wages 157.48 34.43
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.98 2.59
Share based payments to employees 4.79 1.85
Staff weifare expenses 1.21 1.41
Gratuity expense {Refer Note 23.1) 1.10 0.62
Leave encashment 0.03 0.05
Total 167.59 100.95




360 GNE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as [iF% Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CiM: U74950MH2010P1LCH11334
Notes forming part of Financisf Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

23.1. Gratuity Abridged Disclasure Statement For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars 2023-2024 2022 - 3023
Type of benefit Gratuily Gratuity
Couttry India Inchia
Reporting currency INR INR
Reporting standard Indizn Accounting Standard 19 | indian Accounting Standard 19 {Ind AS
{ind A5 19} 19}
Funging status funded Funded
Starting period 01-Apr-2023 01-Apr-2022
Date of reponiing 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
Period of raparting 12 Months 12 Months
Assumptions
Expected return en plan assets 7.30% 7.46%
Rate of discounting 7.21% 7.46%
Rate of szlary increase 7.50% 7.50%

Rate of employee turnover

For service 4 years and below
15.00% p.a. For service 5 years
and above 7.50% p.a.

For service 4 years and below 15.00%
p.a. For service 5 years and zhove
7.50% p.a.

Martality rate during employment

indian Assured Lives Mortality

indian Assured Lives Mortahty {2012-

{2012-14} Ultirate 14] Uttimate

Mortality rate after empioyment NA, N.A

(2 Mn)
Table showing change in the present valye of projected benefit obligation 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 7.81 7.58
Interest cost 4.58 0.53
Current service cost .95 0.62
Liability trznsferred in/ acguisitions 0.36 0.50
{Liability trmnsferred out/ divestments) {057} b
{Benefit paid from the fund) {C.42} {2.00}
A:tuaflaligarns}/ifnsses an cbligatiens - due to change in 018 {5.28)
financial assumptions
Actuarial [gainstiosses on obligations - due to experience 0.87 C.86
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the peried 9.74 781
Table showing change in the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 5.81 7.62
Interest income 0.44 .53
{benefit paid from the fund) {0.42} (2.00)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest imcomae 0.04 0.34)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the periad 5.83 5.81
Amount recognised in the batance sheet
{Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the pericd) 19.74), {7.81)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 5.83 5.81
Funded slatus (surplus/ {deficit}) {3.91); {2.00)
Net {lia hility)/asset recognised in the balance sheet {3.91), [2.00)
Net interest cost for curreat period
Interest cost 058 0.53
[Interest income) (0.44)) 10.53)
Net interest cost for current period 0.15 -
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss for current period
Cutrent service cost 0.95 .62
Net interest cost G615 -
Expensas recognised 110 .62
Expenses recognised in the other comprehensive incarme (QCH for current period
Actuatial {gains}flosses an obligation far the period 1.03 .58
Return on plan assats, excluding interast income 0,08 0.34
Net {income)/expense for the period recognised in GCl 1.03 0.892
Balance sheet reconciliation
Opzhing net liability 2.00 {0.04)
Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss 1.10 0,62
Expenses recognised in OCI 1.03 0.92
Net liability/{asset} transfer in 0.36 0.50
Net {liability)/asset transfer out {0.57) -
Net liabdfity/(asset) recognised in the balance sheet 3.91 2.00

Note: 0.00K indicates less than {310,000/

s e,




360 ONE tnvestrent Adviter and Trustee Services Limdted [Farmerly known as lIFL investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited]

Notes farming part of Finzncial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2024

23.1. Gratuity Abridged Disclosure Statement For the year ended March 31, 2024

{TMn}
Lategery of assets 2023 - 2024 2022 - 323
tnsurance fund 5.83 5.81
Total 5.83 5.81
Other details
Ne of active members 20 27
Per month salary for active metnbers 3.50 2.89
Weighted average duration of PRO 10 i}
Average expected future service 8 9
Projected henefit obligation (PBQ) .74 781
Prescribed contribution for next year {12 months) 3.50 2.82
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments
1st following year C.83 .68
2nd following year 4.82 0.67
3rd following year §.80 0,65
4th following year 6.83 0.64
5th following year 2.11 .64
Sum of years 6to 10 3.80 3.81
Sum of years 11 and above B.26 7.65
Sensitivity analysis
P8O on current 3ssumptions 9.74 7.80
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting {0.61) {0.50)
Delia effect of -1% change in rate of discounting G.69 Q.57
Gehta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 0.38 0.36
Dekta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase {0.33) {0.34)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnaver 9.09 0.08
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of emplovee turnover {0.13) {0.08)




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as HEL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74950MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

23.2 befined Contribution Plans:
The Company has recognised the following amounts as an expense and inciuded in the Empioyee Benefit Expenses.

{X Min}
Particuiars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 3023
Contribution to provident fund 2.98 2.59

Tatal 2.98 2.59




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Lirnited {Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74990MH2010PLC211334

Notes farming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 24. Other Expenses:- {X Mn)
Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Operations and fund management expenses 0.88 0.90
Rent and energy cost 6.22 5.67
tnsurance - 0.03
Repairs & maintenance 0,14 0.22
Marketing, advertisement and business promotion expenses 0.16 0.11
Fravelling & conveyance 8.13 5.45
Legal & professional fees 3,18 3.38
Communication 0.86 0.94
Software charges / Technology cost 1.88 2.71
Office & other expenses 2.50 16.47
Remuneration to Auditors :

Audit fees (Net of GST input credit) 0.50 0.27

Certification expenses 0.04 0.10

Dut Of pocket expenses 0.02 0.00#
Printing & Staticnary - 0.07
Total 24,52 36.38

Note: 0,004 indicates less than {¥10,000/-}

iy




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74390MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 25. Incame taxes
Disclosure pursuant to Income Taxes

fa)

Major components of tax expense/ (income)

[X Mn)
5r. No. Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Statement of Profit and Loss:
{a) Profit and Loss section:
{t} Current Income tax :
Current income tax expense 46.39 5.01
Total Current income Taxii) 46.39 5.01
{ti) Deferred Tax:
Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences {0.42) .05
Total Deferred Tax(ii) {0.42) .05
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss f{i)+{ii)] 45,97 5.06
[{3)] Other Comprehensive income {OC1) Section:
i) ftems not 1o be reclassified to profit or [oss in subsequent periods:
{A) Current tax expense/{income):
(B) Deferred tax expense/(income}:
Cn re-measurement of defined benefit plans {0.26) (0.23)
tncome tax expense reported in the other comprehensive income {i) [0.26}) {0.23)
(b} Reconciliation of Income tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate applicable in India:
{XMn)
51, No. Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
{a) profit before tax 182.45 20.61
{b) Income tax expense at tax rate applicable to the Company 45,92 5.19
(c) Tax effect on various other items Q.05 {0.13)
Total effect of tax adjustments 0.05 {0.13}
(d) Tak expense recognised during the year 45,97 5.06




380 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as |IFL investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74930MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 26. Earnings Per Share;

Basic and diluted earnings per share [“EPS”} computed in accordance with INDAS 33 ‘Earnings per share”.

{X Mn)
Particulars 2023 - 2024 2622 -2023
BASIC
Profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss before Other Comprehensive Income A 136.48 15 55
{T Vin)
Weighted average number of shares issued 8 3,52,25,000 3,52,25,000
Face value of equity shares (in %) fully paid 10.00 10.00
Basic EPS (%) ASB 3.87 0.44
DILUTED
Profit after tax as per statement of profit and foss before Other Comprehensive Income A 136.48 15.55
Weighted average number of shares issued B 3,52,25,000 3,52,25,000
Add: Potential equity shares on account of conversion of employee stock option C - -
Weighted average number of shares outstanding D=p+C 3,62,25,000 3,52,25,000
Diluted EPS (R) A/D 3.87 .44




350 OME Investrent Adviser ang Teuster Services Limitad [Formarly known as HFL fnvertrment Adviser and Truslee Servicos Eimitad)
CIN; UF4930MH2010PLCT LR
Notes lorming part of Flnancial Statemnents for the vesr ended Match 31, 2024

tote 27. Disclosure Pursuant 10 Ind AS 107 “financial nstrgments; Disclosures”™
Fingnclal Rish Management abjectives and pokicies

The Company’s financial tish nanagement s an integral pard of haw 1o plan and execule itz busines:
jiaksdities comprite wae gnd other gayalde

2 strategivs (he Company's rish rmanagement policy is approved by the baard cammatiee The Company's principat fimarcal
ilities. The Comgany’s princisal rish assets inchuge trade and ethes recaivaliles, toans, cath dnd cash equivatents,

., Mber Carporite bartawings ang other financials
nvestments and ether financial assets that derive ditectly fram ite operatians amd Investmant

The Cempany is exgoses to market tish, credit risk, ¥quidity risk etc. The Company's sanior T owversies the managemant of these fixks. The Campany's s=nisi management is aversecn by the sudit comemitize with
#esprel Lo riiks ond failitates appropriate linarial risk governante framewark fuc the Company. Finangial risss are identitizd, mnatured and mansged in accordance with the Company polities and rish objectivas. The Bmard
of Discetors revivws and agrees policiat bor managing key fizhs, which are sammasised befow

274.). Credi Risk

Credit risk rfers tw tisk that 3 counterparty wilt dedault or its cantractusd obligations resulting in financial fose to the Company, Crodit itk assetsement on varioys campenents fs described below:

] Trada recelvables, Other recelvables und Other Financlal Assets

The Company's Lrade 1eceivabiles primarity includes receivables from Trustesthip, portfalio matagemenl scheme and Advisory services acrangements, The Company has made Lietime evpected cradit loss pravision based on
provisian matrk which tahes inio accaunt higtericat experience in collection and cradit nsses.

Credis Rigk en Other Financial assets is considered insignificant as tha countarparty fisk does net exists and conyidering the Raturs of such agsets

Movemant in the Expected Credit Loss/ tmpairment Loss allowanca with regards t trade recelvalblos 35 as faliows ©
Paniculars 2023- 20} 2022 - 3023
Balance a1 1he boglnning of the year 5.98) 3.45

Movement in expectad credit lozs allowances on
trade receivable 2.06 102
{Balance at 1he end of the yaar 4 5.98]

2) Cthers

In addition 1o the abeve, balynce with banks, invastments in bonds, desl secuziliss and wnits of madtyal fundz,loans alsz have exposure to credit tisk,

Credit ¢isk on Galance with banks is imited a5 thete balances are generally held with banks and fnanckal institutions with high eeedit 1atings andfor with capital adeguacy ratie abiove the prescried regutatony dimits.
Credit fisk in respect of investments in bonds, debt secutities and units of mutual funds classitied as Fair ¥alue thraugh Profit ar Loss is pricad in the fair value of the respective instruments.
Crada risk on loans is considered insigniicant considering the loan it given 10 group companies Similarly the credit risk with group ned s cansidered insgnificant

27B. Liquidity Risk

Liguidity visk refers o the ritk that the Company may nat be shle Lo mest ity shor-term finanrial ol tigns, The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securitios and by having access
1w {unding through a inter corparate borrawing from graup companies . The Company seeks to maintain flexibility in funding mix by way of saurcing the funos through Inter tompany deposits to meet its business and liguidity
requirements.

The faflawing tabie shaws the maturity profite of Financial Lahilities;

As at March 71, 204

Financiat Habllitles Total Less than | months |1 months 10 € months | & monthy 10 1 year Belween 1 %0 & yoars Syears and aliova

Trade Payables 38,04 .54 32.50) . -
Other financial lizhilizies 048] 0. : - ] -
Tetal 39.52 2.02] 12,50 Z 4 -

As at March 31, 2023

Hnanelal Habilities Total Less than 1 months | 1 ronths 1o 6moenths | & months 1o & year Belween ko 5 years S yesrs and above

Trade fayables 19.63] | B - -
Other financiat lisbllities 4.14] E - -
Yoral £1.01] . - - -

For Finance Leace Gblifation hraturity Reler Nate 41
27C, Marhet Risk
Maarket rigk 5 the risk of any toss in future earnings, in realisahla fair values or in futures cash Mlows that may result from a change in the price of a tinanciat instrumenl as exploined bolow. The Company manzges market risk

theogh a treasury department, which evaluate and sxercises contral over the entire process ol market risk management. The treasury departenent recommends risk management objectives and poticies, which are approver
by senior and the Audil/ committee. The activities of this department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market fisk limit and poticies,

2IC.1 Currency Risk

The Company daes net run a proprictary trading position in loreign currencies and fareign currency denominated instrumenty However the Company does have some exposure ta larelgn cutrengies by malnltaing cash
batance in currencies ather than reporting/funclional currenciss

The canying amount of Finaceist assels and Habillties subject to foreign exchange risk for FY 2023 - 2024 sre a5 betow Wt}
{Farticulers T AED | cap ] HED T 60 1 GEP | ami
1C2sh and Cash Eguivatents | B ] d B 0.008] ]

The carrying amaunt of Finaneial assets and NlabRities subject to forsign exchange risk for FY 2022 - 2023 are as balow

[Parcicutars | AED. | CAL T WD [ 560 I GRP T RMB ]
|£35k 20 Cash: Equivalents | | B ] | 0.02] B

0.00# Inglcates fess than (X10,000/-)
TIC.2 Interest rate risk

The Company has measured interest rate risk senss

sensitivity

The Company has no financials assets ardiabil

ity on leanciaf 2ssets and Fabilities on financiat instruments aceaunted for on amortised cast basis Since ail loans and borrowings are fixed rate there is no inlerest rate

ies which are exposed to interast rate tisk.

27¢3. Qlher Price Risk
Othes price risk Is fefated to the change in market reference price of the derivative financial instruments, invistiosnts and debt securltfes which are falr vafued and exgotes the Group o piice

rishs.

The catrying smount of financial aszels and labilities subject 16 price righ {s as below:

Parniculars As 3t Mareh 31, 1824 As at March 33, 2021

Finangial Astety

[avestments 36477 303,59
36877 305.53

Senuitivty 1o change in prices of the above assets and liabilite; are on the following

investments In AFs f MFS fothers 1% change In the NAV/price

Invesments in Debt socurities and Government]
Securities, Debt Securities hsued {Lishilities), and]
Interest rate derivatives hinked to underlving]
interestfprica movemenis in the interest bearing]
securitics

0.25% change i yieid owver
duration ol the Instruments
cansidering  PV(OLF 4z 9
measure of thange in value

A hypothetical 100 basis point shift In the benchmark rate witl have Impact an the profit and fost as below:

2073. 2624 70222023
Inerense
tnpach oo Profit and Eoss alter tac 273 2.27
frmpact on Equity 273 2.27
Decreass
bmpact on Profit and Loss alter tac 273 2.27)
Impact oo Equity (2.73) 12.27)




360 ONE tnvestment Advizor and Trustee Secvices Limited [Formerly known a IEL invasument Adviser and Trastee Services Limited)
CIes: U7A300MHICIOPLC 211534
Notes ferming pan ol Financiat Statements for 1he year ended March 31, 2024

270.Cagital Management

27E. Categaty Wise Clsssitication for applicshle Financial Asse!

For e purpase of the Tompany's capita!
Company’s capital managemen

anagesment, espi

s and Liabilities

As a1 Masch 31, 202a
Mcasured AL Fair Valug
S No. Particutars. Maazured At Fair Vatue thraugh C1her
thraugh Proflt or Less | Comprehensive income
Measure at Amorised East [e2] o Total
Einanrial Assets
ta]  itaskand cash 20.35 035
{l} Receivables -
{1} T1ate teceivables 20204 or.91
1N} Other receivables 0.32 0.32
(3] Laans 0.9 .49
¢t investments - 364.7 - 384,77
tei  |Qthes tinangial azsens 23.48 - - 1346
Toral 247.58 364.77 - 61235
Financiat Uabllities -
tal | |Papabics
Uirade pavahbloy
1] total autstanding dues of mirro anterprises
and small enterprisss - -
(5] toval outstanding dues of creditars other
than titry eaterprises and smalt emterprizes 39.03 - 3908
ib} Lease Ligilitias 331 113
§ct  otherfinancial akifities 0.28 - - .48
Tatal 40.63 - - 40,63
Az at March 31, 2023
Wieasured At Fair Valua
51 No. Paniculacs 1hrough Other
Measured At Fair Velue | Comprehensive income
Measure at Amartized Cony  [ihrough Proli or LossiP/L) loc Total
Hnancial Assets
13} [Cash and eash equivatents 2297 : . 2.9
bt Rereivables -
[1} Trade recelvabies 53,45 - : 53.48
{11) Oiber recaivablas 033 - - 033
{g)__ |investments - 30359 - 301.58
g} |Oiher financial assels 2169 - - 1389
Tatal 108.68 103,59 - 412.27
Financdel Uakilities
ta) Payables
IjFrads pavables -
{i} otal outstanding dues of micto entarprises
and small enterprises - - - -
[ total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small anterprises 1983 - 15.83
{b} _{Lease Uabilities 228 238
¢ Other finsnciat Hahllities 138 - - Li6
Total pEly:) - - P

27E.1. Falr vatues el financial instrumants

he Company measures falr values using the foliowing fair value hierarchy, which rellects the significance of The Inputs used In making the measurements.

—Lavel

in 2ctive markets for similar instruments;
obiservable Irom market data,

=~ Level 3: Inputs thad are unchservable, This categary includes all instruments for which the valuatian technigue inciudes inbuts that are not sbrervable 3nd the whobservable inputs have a signiticant effect
Instrument’s waluglion. This category includes ingiruments that are vatued based an quoted prices tor similar i

between the instrumants,

nputs that are quoted market prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical Instruments,
- Level 2! Inputs other than quoted prices ingluded within Level 1 that are ob:

nts for which i

unabiervahte

icluries 1s3ied edaity capial share premium and all otker aguity 1eserves attrdiubable to the wuily babden of te Camsimy. The fitimary objective of the
s 10 madmete the shazehstder value

cervabilz elther directly (fe. 23 prices) er indizecthy {i.e. derived fvom prices). This catogary Inchudes instruments valed using: quoted market prices
; queted prices for identical or similar Instrurnents in mrarkels that are considared lesz than active; of ather valuation technigues inwhich all gignificant inpuls are directly orindirectly

onthe
oF assumptions are raquired to reflact differences

The Company uses witely recopnised vatuation madels lo determine the fair value of common and simple linancial instruments, such as interest rate and currancy swaps, that use anly ehservable market data and require

fittie management judgement and estimation, Gbservable pricet or madel inputs are usuaily avallable in the market fa
interest eate swaps. The availabifily of observable masket prices and model inputs reduces the need lor

27E. 1a. Financlal fnstrumants measured at fale valua - Fair velue hararchy

Financial instruments at falr value kevel 1 LevelZ Leyel 3 Total

Finuneial Assots

nvestments In Mutvsl Fund 17202 - - 1TR02

Hnuestments in Dabt securities - 19275 : 197.75
{Totat Asrers 172.02 192,75 - 364,77

Recurring fak valie messurements at 31.03.2013

finsachl Instrumants measured at fair valus Levei Leyel2 Levet s Total
Financial Asgets

Fvestments in Mutual funds in.13 - - 10,13
Investroants In Debt securfties - 28345 - 293.45
Tatal Assels 10.13 233,45 - 303,59

Z7E. 1b Fair value of financial assets and (inanclal liabililes measured 2t amontised cost

Financlal Asrers and lisbilities which are A3 44 March 32, 2024 Az at March 31, 2013

maasured ntamortised 2ost for which fair volues

are distlozed Carrying Value Fair Yatue Carrying Value Fair Value
Sinancial Ascets

Cash and gash eauivalents 10.35 0,35 3787 EFR:2)
Regeivables

{1) Trade receivahies 202,94 202.94 XL 5349

15} Other receivables 03 6.32 0.33 .33
Loans 049 0.45 - N
Other financial assels 23,48 2348 2189 23,89
Financia! Lizhilities

{1ITrade payables

{i} total autstending dues of micio anferpiises
and smiall enterprises - -
fii} total outstanding dues of credilors ather

than micro enterprises snd small enlerprives 39.04 19.83 19.63
Lease fishilitles 1.1 2.25 328
{ther inanciol fiabilties 0.4 138 118

and

r fisted debt and equity securilfas, exchange-traded derivatives and simple OTC dertvativas wuch a5
imation and also reduces the yncertaimy associated with determining falr values.

The fallowing 1abie analyses financial instruments measured at fair value al the reparting date, by the levet in the fait value hicrarchy inta which the fair value meazurement i cotegorized,

The armouits are based on Lhe values recognized fn the statement ot financial positien. Tha falr values include any deferied differences betwern Ihe transaction price and the f3if value on inftial recaghition when the fair
value is based on a vatustion iechnigue that vies wnobservable Inputs.

Recurring fair value

nts at 31.01.2024

Financlal assets messured at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of tash and cash equival
nature,

ynenshal Hixbiiities measured at amertised cost:

, Wrade and other

, pans and other financial assets are comidered to be the same 8z thair fak values due Lo heir short teem

@ carrving amounts of frade payables lease fiabiitins and ather linancial liabitles are cantidered ta b the same as their fair valaes due to theit short term nawure.




360 ONE investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74990MH2010P1LC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 28. Capita, Other Commitments and Contingent Liabilities at Balance Sheet date:

Capital and Other Commitments

{% Mn}

As at March 31,
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 2023
Commitments to contribute funds for the acquisition of property, plart and equipment and
intangible assets 1.34
Total - 1.34
Contingent Liabiflities {Z Mn}

As at March 31,
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 2023
Disputed income tax demand* 15.23 15.23
Total 15.23 15.23

* Amount paid under protest with respect ta income tax demand ¥ 3.13 mn {PY T 3.13 mn)
Management believes that the ultimate outcome of above matters will not have a material adverse impact on its financial position, resufts of operations

and cash flows. In respect of above matters, future cash outflows in respect of cantingent liabilities are determinable only on receipt of judgements
pending at various authorities,

Note 28.1. The Company operates from and uses the premises, Infrastructure and other facilities and services as provided to it by its holding
Company/group companies, which are termed as ‘Shared Services'. Hitherto, such shared services consisting of administrative and other revenue
expenses paid for by the Company were identified and recovered/recoverable from the Company based on reasonable management estimates, which are
constantly refined in the light of additional knowledge gained relevant to such estimation. These expenses are recovared gn an actual basis and the
estimates are used only where actual expenses were difficult 1o determine.

Note 28.2. Segment Reporting

in the epinion of the management, there is only one reportabile business segment Trust Advisary/ Trustee of Alfs as envisaged by ind AS 108 "Operating
Segments’, as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required to be made in the financial
statements of the Company. Secondary segment based on geography has not been presented as the Company operates primarily in India and the
Company perceives that there is no significant difference in its risk and returns in aperating from different geographic areas within India.
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360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IFL investment Adviser and Trustee Services Lirtited}

CIN; Urass0MHZ0I0PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 29. Related Party Disclosures:

a) List of Related Parties:

Nature of relationship

Name of party

Director/ Key Managetial Personnel

Mr. Girish Venkataraman, Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Niraj Murarka, Non-Executive Director

M. Rohit Wadhwa, Whole- Time Director

M. Himanshu K Jain, Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. Febuary 10, 2024}

Ms. Nikita Shah, Company Secretary

|Holding Company

360 ONE WAM Limited [Formerly known as HIFL Wealth Management Limited)

|fetlow Subsidiaries

360 ONE Prime Limited {(Formerly known as [IFL Wealth Prime Limited)

360 ONE Asset Managernent Limited {Fermearly known as [IFL Asset Management Limited )

360 ONE Asset Trustee Limited {Formerly known as IFL. Trustee Limited)

360 ONE IFSC Limited (Formerly known as liFL Wealth Securities IFSC Limited)

360 ONE Portfolio Managers Limited [Formerly known as HIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited}

360 ONE Distribution Services Limited ( Formerly known as [IFL. Wealth Distribution Services Limited)

360 One Foundation (Formerly known as IFLW CSR Foundation)

MAVM Angels Netwaork Private Limited (w.e.f. November 15,2022}

360 ONE Alternates Asset Management Limited {w.e.f. October 31, 2023}

360 ONE Private Wealth {Dubai) Private Limited {Formerly known as LifL Private Wealth Management (Dubai) Limited)

360 ONE INC. (Formerly known as IIFL Inc.)

360 ONE Asset Management (Mauritius) Limited (Formerly known as (FL Asset Management {Mauritius) Lirrited)

360 ONE Capital Pte. Limited (Formerly known as ItFI. Capital Pte. Limited }

360 ONE Capital (Canada) Limited {Formerly known as {iFL Capital {Canada} Limited)




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as lIFL investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CiN: U74990MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 23, Related Party Disclosures;

b) Significant Transactions with Refated Parties & Disclosures for the year ended March 31, 2024

{X in Min}
oi M fal
Nature of Transaction lrectsr/;(:r\,;onanagena Holding Company | Fellow Subsid iaries Tataf
1CD Taken
. . - 101.00 - 101.00
60 ONE WAM Limited (F Iy ki IIFL Wealth M t Limited
360 ONE imited (Formerly known as ea anagement Limited) (270,007 - 270,001
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Prime Limited) N - (807.00) (80?00)
1CD Repaid
. . - 101.00 - 101.00
360 ONE WAM timited {Formerly kno 1{FL Wealth Management Limited
ited {Far y known as anag ited) - 370.00) - 1270.00)
360 ONE Prime Limited {Formerly known as HIFL Wealth Prime Limited - . - >
{ riy ] - : (£0.00) (80.00)
Interest Income pn NCD
. - - 28.38 28.38
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as IiIFL Wealth Prime Limited
( Y mited) - (29.10) {29.10}
Interest Expense on ICD
350 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as [IFL Wealth Management Limited) = 0.09 - 0.9
- {1.15) - {1.15}
360 ONE Prime Limited {Formerly k n as [IFL Wealth Prime Limited - . . -
i { ely know e ime Limited) N N (0.08} {0.08)
ICD Given
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited [ Formerly known as IIFL Wealth - - 60.00 60.00
Distribution Services Limited) . . . .
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as lIFL Wealth Prime Limited) - - 20.00 20.00
ICD Received Back
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited { Farmerly known as {IFL Wealth - - 60.00 60.60
Distribution Services Limited) - R . .
360 ONE Prime Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Prime Limited} - . 20.00 2090
Interest Income on ICD
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited { Formerly known as IIFL Wealth - - 0.54 0.54
Distribution Services Limited) - B . .
Remuneration to Key Managerial Persen
Saiaries and other employee benefits to whele time directors and other KMPs 4007 . - 4007
{28.10) B (28.10)
Fees Earned For Services {including Brokerage) rendered
360 ONE Partfolic Managers Limited {Formerly IIFL Wealth Portfolic Managers . - 6.29 6.29
Limited) - - {5.85] {5.85}
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited ( Formerly known as HIFL Wealth - - 18.37 18.37
Distribution Services Limited) - - {16.10) {16.10)




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as [IFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74390MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Stataments for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 29. Related Party Bisclosures:

Nature of Transaction

Director/Key Managerial

Person Holding Company | Fellow Subsidiaries Total
Fees/Expenses incirred/Reimbursed For Services Procured
360 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as iFL Wealth Management Limited) =58 . >.68
- {5.13) - {5.13)
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited { Formerly known as [IFL. Wealth - - -
Distribution Services Limited) {15.20) {15.20)
Aliocation / Reimbursement Of Expenses Paid (Refer No,Note No. 28.1)
360 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly known as lIFL Wealth Management Limited) 2,98 .98
R {3.78) (3.78)
Other Funds Received
360 CONE Distribution Services Limited { Formerly known as IIFL, Weaith - - 0.17 0.17
Distribution Services Limited) R R N B
. - . . - - 0.35 0.35
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Weaith Prime Limited)
360 ONE Portfolio Managers Limited {Formerly IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers - - - -
Limited) - - {0.60) {0.60}
Other Funds Paid (Refer No.Note No. 28.1}
360 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly known as lIFL Wealth Management Limited) . é';gl . (i’;g}
360 ONE Portfolic Managers Limited {Formerly lIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers - - 011 0.11
Limited} . . . N
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited { Formerly known as IIFL Wealth - - 0.46 0.46
Distribution Services Limited) . . N N
360 ONE Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as HFL Asset 0.30 0.30
Management Limited) . N
Purchase of lnvestment
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Prime Limited . - . .
¥ ! - - {90.55) {90.55)
Sale of Investmant
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Prime Limited) - . . =
N - (9139} (91.39}




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as HFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)

CIN, U74990MH2010PLC212334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 30. Related Party Disclosures:

) Amount due to / from related parties {Closing Balance}

MNature of Transaction

Directar/Key Managerial

Holding Company | Fellow Subsidiaries Total
Person
Sundry Receivahles
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited { Formerly known as {IFL Wealth - - 5,16 5.16
Distribution Services Limited} - . .
360 ONE Portfolic Managers Limited {Formerly lIFL Wealth Portfelio Managers - - 1.62 1.62
Umited) - - (1.29) {1.29)
Sundry Payables - -
i . - 1.00 - 1.00
360 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as lIFL Wealth Management Limited)
- (1.95) {1.95)
360 ONE Distribution Services Limited { Formerly known as IIFl, Wealth - - - -
Distribution Services Limited) - - {C.05) {0.05)
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Prime Limited) - - (0.20) (0.20)
- - {0.20) {0.20)
Payable to Broker
350 ONE Distribution Services Limited ( Formerly known as {IFL Wealth - 0.004 0.008
Distribution Services Limited) - - - -
Investment Held in NCD/Debt Securities
} . . L - - 190.93 150.93
360 ONE Prime Limited [Formerly known as IIFL, Wealth Prime Limited
( Y ) - - {290.87) (290.87)

Note: 0,004 indicates less than (¥10,000/-)

Amounts in brackets represents pravious year's figures




360 ONE investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as [IFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74930MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 30.1 Maturity analysis of assets and Tabilities as at March 31, 2024

{X M1n)
;‘; Particulars Within 12 months After 12 months Total
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(2) Cash and cash equivalents 20.35 - 20_35
(b) Receivables
{l}) Trade receivables 202.94 - 20294
{ll} Other receivables 0.32 - 0.32
(c) Loans 0.49 - 0.29
(d) investments 364.77 - 364.77
(e} Qther financial assats 23.48 - 23.48
2 MNon-Financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) - 19.54 19.54
{b) Deferred tax assets {net) - 2.64 2.64
(c} Property, plant and equipment - 1.64 1.64
{c) Intangible assets under developmang 217 - 2.17
{e) Right of use - 1.07 1.07
{f} Other ron-financial assets 0.79 - 0.79
Total Assets 615.31 24.89 640.20
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables -
{l)Trade payables -
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises - i )
{ii) tota} outstanding dues of creditors other thar micro ) 39.04
enterprises and small enterprises 39,04 )
(b} Finance Lease Liabilities .31 0.79 1,10
{c} Other financial tiabilities 0.48 - 0.48
2 Non-Financial Liabilities -
() Current tax lizbilities {net) 35.98 - 35.98
({b) Provisions 3.52 0.53 406
{c) Other non-financial liabilities 13.92 . 13,92
3 EQUITY -
{a) Equity share capital - 352.25 352,25
{b) Other equity - 193.36 193.36
Totak Liabilitias and Equity 93.25 546.93 640.20




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL fnvestment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited)

CIN: U74890MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 30.2. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023

{X Mn}
SR. " Within 12 After 12
No. Particulars months months Total
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 32.97 - 32.97
{b) Recetvables
(I} Trade receivahles 53.49 - 53.49
(I") Other receivables .33 - 0.33
(e} toans R . R
{d) fnvestments 303.5% - 303.59
{e} QOther financial assets 21.89 - 21.89
2 Non-Financial Assets
{a) Current tax assets (net} - 2532 25,32
{b} Deferred tax assets (net) - 1.96 1.96
{c) Property, plant and eguipment - 0.12 0.13
{e) Intangible Asset under Development Q.56 - 0.56
f) Right of use - 2.25 2.25
(g} Other non-financial assets 1.32 - 1.32
Total Assets 41415 29.66 443.81
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabitities
(a) Payables
{)Trade payables
(¥} total outstanding dues of micro ) ]
enterprises and smalt enterprises ~
{if) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small -
enterprises 19.83 19.83
k) Finanice Lease Liabiities 0.54 1.74 2.28
{c} Other financial liabilities 1.18 - 1.18
2 Non-Financial Liabilities -
{a) Current tax liabilities {net) 0.57 - 0.57
{b} Provisions 2.01 .10 211
{c) Other non-financial liabilities 7.93 - 7.93
3 EQLUITY
(a) Equity share capital 352.25 352.25
(b) Other equity 57.65 57.65
Total Liabilities and Equity 32.06 411.74 443,81




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as 1IFL investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited)
CIN: U74950MH2010PLC211334
Notes forming part of Financial Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 31: Other $tatutory Information

1. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prchibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder, as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

2. The Company is not a deciared wilful defauiter by any bank or financial Institution or other fender, in accorgdance with the guidelines an wilfu! defaulters
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

3. The Company does nat have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,
1956 during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

4. There have been no transactions which have not been recorded in the baoks of account, that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 2961. There have been no previously unrecorded
income and related assets which were to be properily recorded in the books of account during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

5. The Company has not advanced or loaned ar invested funds ta any other person(s) or entity(ies), incluging foreign
entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recarded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

6. The Company has not received any fund from any person{s} or entityiles), including foreiga entities {Funding Party} with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
7. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

8. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

9. Considering that the Company is in the business of agvisory services & trustee services, the analytical ratios related to Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Ratio (CRAR), Tier | CRAR,Tiar |l CRAR and Liquidity Coverage Ratios are not applicable




360 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Formerly known as IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limised)
CIN: U7A990MH2010PLC211334

Notes forming part of Firancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 32, Subseguent Events
There were o subsequent events frem the date of financial statements till the date of adoption of accounts.

Note 33. Previous year figures are regrouped where ever considered necessary to confirm to current year's presentation.

Note 34, Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors on April 20, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

i N M

Girish Venkataraman aj Kumar Murarka
Whole Time Director and CEQ Birector
{DIN: 06981605) {DIN: 02312454)

' C}j‘)-
Himanshu K. Jatn ikita Shah

Chief Financiaf Officer ompany Secretary
1ACS: 26447)

Flace : Murmbai
Date: Aprit 20, 2024



